
 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

JUNE 15, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

     INVOCATION /   

  

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / June 1, 2015  

               

                                                     Council Work Session Minutes / June 8, 2015 

                                                      

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry     

Review minutes / June 8
th
  

1.)    Ordinances: 

         a.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Recreational Facilities Master Planning & Pre-Design  /  Ordinance 2015-33 

 

         b.)  Setting Forth the Signatories for the City of Daphne / Ordinance 2015-34 

 

         c.)  Property Purchase / Lake Forest property / Lot 62 Sub Unit 25 / Ordinance 2015-35  

 

2.)     Resolutions: 

          a.)  Confiscated Funds Signatories / Resolution 2015-42 

 

3.)     Financial Reports: 
 Treasurer’s Report / May 2016 

 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections / April 2015 

 

 Lodging Tax Collections / April 2015  

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell   

Review minutes / May 26
th
  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

Review minutes / January 8
th
  

 

Staff Report / June 4
th
 meeting 

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway   

1



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               JUNE 1, 2015                                            PAGE   2 
 

 

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – Davis  

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD - Lake  

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

              

F. RECREATION BOARD – LeJeune 

                  

G. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

    

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

     a.)  Events Permit / Free (Forever Receiving Equality Everywhere) /  Walk  /  November 21, 2015 

      

                                         
10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 
 

a.)  Resolution 2015-42. . . . . . . . . . . .Confiscated Funds Signatories  

 

 
 

    

       ORDINANCES:  
 

      1
ST

 READ    
a.)  Ordinance 2015-33. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds / Daphne Master Planning &  

                                                                   Pre-Design  

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-34. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Setting Forth the Authorization of Certain City Officials  

                                                                                as Designated Signatories on Various Accounts of the  

              City of Daphne 

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-35. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds / Property Purchase / Lake Forest  

                                                                               Lot 62-Sub Unit 

      
  

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

3



JUNE 1, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                       

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood, (arrived at 6:40 p.m.); Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk;  

Jay Ross, City Attorney; Kevin Boucher, Adams & Reese ; James White, Fire Chief; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; 

Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant/Treasurer; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Tonja Young, Library Director; 

Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Dorothy Morrison, DRA and Beautification Committee; Larry Cooke, BZA; David 

Connor, Attorney for City of Spanish Fort; Mike McMillan, Mayor of the City of Spanish Fort. 

Absent:  David Carpenter, Police Chief; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Vickie Hinman, HR Director. 

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Reverend Brad McClain, Chaplin for the Police Department gave the invocation. 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

May 26, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
There being no corrections the May 26, 2015 minutes were approved as written.  

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

 The next meeting will be next Monday at 4:30 p.m. They have invited the grant consultant for an update, and they 

have asked for an update on a quarterly basis. 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Davis 

The committee met today, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be June 15
th 

at 4:30 p.m..   

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The May 26
th
 minutes are in the packet, and the next meeting will be June 15

th
 after the Public Safety meeting at 5:30 

p.m.. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The committee met today, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

4



JUNE 1, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The next meeting will be June 4
th
 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The May 21 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be June 24
th
 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

 The next meeting will be June 29
th
 at 6:00 p.m., and is open to the public.  The DISC project is moving along at a 

good pace.  The banks are interested in helping with the project. 

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be June 11
th
 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

    E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The April 23
rd

 minutes are in the packet along with the staff report for the May 28
th
 meeting.  The next meeting is the 

Site Review meeting on June 17
th 

at 8:30 a.m., and the Planning Commission on June 25
th
 at 5:00 p.m. 

                 

   F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be June 10
th
 at 6:30 p.m. at the Recreation Center.  Mr. Patton gave information last Tuesday on 

the Scope of Work, and he would like to see this done so they can get to work.  The Park Team will be meeting soon. 

 

  G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The April 29
th
 minutes are in the packet.  They had a meeting last week on the mid-year financial review.  They are 

performing well.  They had a consultant to give information on restructuring at the Utilities.  The next meeting will be 

June 24
th
 at 5:00 p.m.   

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Haygood introduced the new Finance Director, Kelli Kichler.  He said that there was a memo from the new 

Senior Programs Manager on the progress at the center. 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 

No report. 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported Art in the Park is Thursday 10:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. Wet & Wild 

Wednesday will be next Wednesday.  

 

Tonja Young – Library Director – reported there were several hundred children at the Summer Read Program kickoff. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – reported a road closure at Rolling Hills Drive.  The LFPOA Sidewalk 

Ribbon Cutting will be Saturday, June 6
th
 at 10:00 a.m. at Ridgewood Drive and Lawson Road. 

 

 

 

 

 

5



JUNE 1, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:  
Mrs. Hayes reported that Sarah Toulson was leaving the city and this is her last council meeting.  She said that she will 

miss Sarah, has that she has been a wonderful assistant. 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Ms. Victoria Phelps – 111 Worchester Drive – invited everyone out to the ribbon cutting for the sidewalks.  She 

mentioned that this was a major milestone in infrastructure for Lake Forest. 

 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2015-39. . . . . . . . . . . .Consent to De-Annexation of Certain Real Property from the City  

                                                              of Daphne to be Incorporated into the City Limits of The City of  

                                                               Spanish Fort 

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-40. . . . . . . . . . . .Authorizing ADECA CDBG Application 

 

c.)   Resolution 2015-41. . . . . . . . . . . .Authorizing All-Way Stops at the Intersection of North and South  

                                                                Lamhatty Lanes and Tawasha Court / Tiawasee Trace Subdivision 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to waive the reading of Resolutions 2015-40. Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to adopt Resolution 2015-40.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

  

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Resolution 2015-41.  Seconded by Councilman 

Fry. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Resolution 2015-41.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

6



JUNE 1, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to waive the reading of Resolution 2015-39.  Seconded by Councilman 

Rudicell. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOULSY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adopt Resolution 2015-39.    No Second 

 

MOTION FAILED FOR LACK OF A SECOND 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

      2
ND

     READ   

a.)  Ordinance 2015-28. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  Redistricting to Establish Voting  

                                                    Districts 

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-29. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  Round-A-Bout @County Roads 13 &  

                                                                              64 / ATRIP Project / Intergovernmental Project with Baldwin  

                                                                              County 

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-30. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds:  Sidewalk Improvements for FY2015 

 

d.)   Ordinance 2015-31. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds:  2014 Assistance to Firefighters  

                                                                               Grant (AFG) / (19) Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus 

 

e.)   Ordinance 2015-32. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Lodging Tax Appropriation:  Bayfront Park Drive  

                                                                               Improvements / Water Line Installation 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinances 2015-28, 2015-29, 2015-30, 2015-31 and 

2015-32.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-28.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

7



JUNE 1, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2015-29.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2015-30.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2015-31.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adopt Ordinance 2015-32.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Lake said that Sarah will be missed along with her sense of humor and for getting things done which was 

very much appreciated.  He complimented Mr. LeJeune for pushing the sidewalk project along, and gave kudos to 

Public Works for their hard work.  He complimented Tonja Young on how she handles all the children. 

 

Councilman Fry is looking forward to the Lake Forest ribbon cutting.  He reminded everyone of the Daphne Art 

Center’s Farm Fair this weekend starting at 8:00 a.m. at city hall. He pointed out the CDBG application will complete 

the sewer system in Daphne.  He welcomed Ms. Kichler as the new Finance Director.  He told Sarah that she will be 

missed. 

 

Councilman Scott said ditto for Sarah, and that she was a great addition to the city and will be missed.  He said not 

only are the sidewalks finished, but they are in Phase 4 of the road projects in Lake Forest, and now the city has the 

Back Nine 33 acres for use for trails.  Finance has submitted the CAFR report. He applauds the Finance Department, 

and said it is great to have a Finance Director on board.   

 

Councilman LeJeune – welcomed Ms. Kichler to the city.  He will miss Sarah, but is excited to see what she can do.  

She is still in the city.  He appreciates the sidewalks, and the work done to improve Lake Forest.  He said they are 

looking for names for the park.  He welcomed Mr. Conner and Mayor McMillan, and is looking forward to meeting 

with them regarding the de-annexation. 

 

Councilman Davis apologized to Mrs. Jones if he offended her by his comments earlier.  He said that Sarah had done a 

good job with the Buildings and Property Committee.  He welcomed Ms. Kichler. 

 

Councilman Rudicell thanked Sarah, and said he appreciated all that she has done for the council. 

 

 

8



JUNE 1, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

Council President Conaway recognized Representative Randy Davis. 

 

Mayor Haygood  thanked all for coming tonight.  He said some things need to be worked out with regards the de-

annexation.  There is some concern over the timing with the Legislative Session. He said they need the facts to make a 

decision.  He Sarah has done a great job, and he knows she will be successful.  He said she will be on the 

Beautification Committee, and thanked her for the job she has done, and wished her the best. 

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:24 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________  _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk      Council President 

9



JUNE 8, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; 

Joe Davis.  

 

Absent:  Pat Rudicell. 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Britton Bonne, Adams & Reese; David McKelroy, 

Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Sherree Hilburn, Payroll & Benefits; Vickie 

Hinman, HR Director; Kelli Kichler, Finance Director; Suanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Margaret Thigpen, 

Civic Center Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Tonja Young, Library Director,, Michael Hoyt, 

Municipal Judge. 

 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:40 p.m. 

 

1.  PRESENTATION:  PRESENTATION: DAPHNE TRANSIT HUB / MATTHEW BROWN ; 

                                  EASTERN SHORE METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

 

Mr. Brown presented information regarding a transit hub in the City of Daphne.  The MPO has the money, but 

they need to know if the city is behind the project.  They will spend $50-60,000 over the next four fiscal years. 

The purpose of the hub is to transport people from the Eastern Shore to Mobile.   

 

Consensus is for the Mayor, Richard Johnson and Mrs. Jones to bring two or three locations to council for 

review. 

 

Mr. Brown said he will need a resolution stating the city is in support of the transit hub by July 23
rd

.  

 

 

 

2. DEPARTMENT HEAD PAY ADJUSTMENT 

Council discussed how to handle the pay adjustment for the department heads.   Council wants to do it right, 

and they feel that they need to look into the pay scale for the city.  Council requested copies of job descriptions 

and pay scales from other cities and the 2012 Archer study. 

 

Consensus of Council is to have a special called Finance Committee meeting to formulate a plan so that they 

can make a recommendation to council by July.  

 

 

3.   ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY 

Mrs. Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk, mentioned to council that she had given them a handout regarding a meeting 

with Governor Bentley June 25
th
 in Mobile, and needs to know who wants to attend so she can get them 

registered. She also discussed with council the plan of action for redistricting, and one idea is for a Public 

Notice to get input from the citizens where they can come to the Library and City Hall where maps will be 

available and they can draw or write suggestions on the maps for council to review.  Mrs. Hayes also discussed 

with council the plan for meeting with each council member regarding the lines for their district.  Councilman 

Davis had a problem with meeting with each councilmember separately to discuss their district lines.  He did 

not feel it was right, and he wanted to discuss it with the whole council.  He wants a motion on the agenda that 

council will meet as a whole to discuss the redistricting. 

10



JUNE 8, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

 

Consensus of council was to have a motion on the agenda for how to proceed with meeting with council for 

redistricting discussions.  They were in favor of the Public Notice and getting input from citizens. 

 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:05 

P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes,          Tommie Conaway,                                                                 

City Clerk      Council President                           

  

11



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
June 8, 2015 

4:30 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m.  Present were Chairman Randy Fry, Councilwoman Mrs. 
Conaway, Councilman Joseph Davis, Councilman Ron Scott, Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman Robin 
LeJeune,  Finance Director Kelli Kichler, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, Revenue Officer Jamie Smith, 
Accounting Technician Sue Moody, and City Attorney Britton Bonner. 
Councilman John Lake and SAIL Site Coordinator Jane Ellis arrived at 4:36 p.m. 
. 
Also in attendance were, Public Works Director Richard Johnson, City Clerk Rebecca Hayes, Civic Center 
Director Margaret Thigpen,  Library Director Tonja Young, Recreation Director David McKelroy, Environmental 
Program Manager Ashley Campbell, and Mr. Larry Cooke, BZA.  
 
 

I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

A. Introduction of the new Finance Director/Treasurer – Ms. Kelli Kichler 
Mr. Fry welcomed the new Finance Director/Treasurer, Kelli Kichler and said he had heard she was off to a 
great start. 
 

B. Fiscal Year 2014 Audit - Mr. Rian Turner, Crow Shields Bailey PC 
Mr. Rian Turner reviewed the FY2014 CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report).  Mr. Turner stated the 
City received a clean audit opinion and noted the CAFR has been presented for review to the Government 
Finance Officers Association and we were waiting for a response for that potential award.  Mr. Turner stated that 
the City’s net position was up 2% ($1.6 million) and liabilities decreased by 5%.  Mr. Turner stated the City’s 
single largest revenue source is Sales Tax.  Mr. Turner continued the review and asked if there were any 
questions.  Mr. Scott discussed some items noted in the audit, the Sewer Assessments that had not been billed 
out over the last 1½ years and the late submittal of the Library Grant check.  Ms. Young answered that she was 
now handling the receiving of the grant paperwork so that will be taken care of.  Ms. Kichler stated that the 
sewer assessments had been mailed out on Wednesday of last week and that controls would be put in place to 
monitor the grant monies.  Mr. Turner continued to discuss the audit and encouraged everyone to read the 
Management Discussion and Analysis letter. 
 
 

II.      BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT 
 

1. Report: New Business Licenses – May, 2015    
      
The Business Licenses Report was included in the packet. Total business license issued YTD is  up 390 from 
last year 
 

  147 - Total Business License issued in May  -  down 18 from May 2014 ( 165  licenses issued).   

   70 - Renewals – out of the 147  
   63 - New businesses with 7 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 
   14  - Prior year licenses.   
 
Ms. Smith stated there was a separate report listing the 7 new businesses with a physical location in Daphne.  
Ms. Smith noted that she has included the district number that the new businesses are located in and is working 
with Mrs. Conaway on updating more information for that report. Ms. Smith stated she included a report showing 
a breakdown by territory for Business License fees collected for May 2015. Ms. Smith reviewed the Business 
License Delinquency report.  Discussion continued on the Delinquency report. 
 
 
 

12



Finance Minutes.doc   

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
       
Mrs. Sherree Hilburn reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions      Status 
Planner (Community Development)   Reviewing applications 
PT Marketing Coordinator    Reviewing applications 
PT Library Aide      Reviewing applications 
IT Computer Services Technician   Scheduling 2

nd
 Interviews  

SWW Sr.      Posting:  June 1-8 (Internal) 
PSW Mowing      Posting:  June 1-8 
Executive Assistant     Posting:  June 8-22 
Firefighter      DOH:  6/11/2015 
Site Containment Inspector    DOH:  5/28/2015 
Asst. City Clerk      Pre-employment background 

 

    

Safety Committee 
One “no fault” injury, one “no fault” property damage and two “at fault” property damages reported for the month.  
Primary drivers of passenger vans required to get annual physicals by our insurance carrier.  They are not 
required to have a CDL license.   Next Safety Committee meeting is June 24, 2015 @ 10:00 a.m. 
 
HR projects/meetings: 

 Oral Board interviews for Police Officer on June 16, 2015 

 Meetings for Benefits Fair have started 

 Collecting information for salary survey (Directors, City Judge, City Prosecutor) 

 Reviewing proposals for Long-Term Disability and Life Insurance 

 Purchasing Card Printer for ID Badges 

 Summer Coaches paperwork completed 

 New Employee Orientation to be held this summer 

 Relay for Life fundraiser: Drawing for TV/BluRay DVD player – Jan Dickson 
 
Mrs. Hayes noted she and the Mayor are reviewing and very close to selecting someone for the Assistant City 
Clerk position.  Mrs. Hilburn noted that $4,200 was raised for Relay for Life. 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve previous months minutes 
The previous minutes were approved. 

 
B. Financial Reports 

1. Treasurer’s Report:  May, 2015 
    Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $ 10,840,698                  

 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $554,814      

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.9 months 
compared to the previous year – 4.9  months 

Included in the packet are graphs that show that activity is on track with the previous year. 
     Mrs. Henson reviewed the Encumbrance report and noted all pending invoices had been paid and the police 
and Animal Shelter monies had been cleared.  Mrs. Henson noted that Mrs. Thigpen was working on getting 
quotes for the Civic Center sign and Mr. McKelroy was working on quotes for the Senior area flooring so those 
encumbrances should be cleared once those projects were complete. 
      .   

13



Finance Minutes.doc   

The Treasurer’s Report as of May, 2015 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,840,698             
and Total City Funds - $19,261,986 was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: April, 2015 
 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs: $1,144,698 was collected for April, 2015: 

 YTD Variance over Budget – ($36,037)  -.5% 

 Percent change from last year’s collections   +  3.1 %  
 
Discussion continued on the Sales Tax Report. 
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  April, 2015 

 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for April 2015 were 
$101,196 which is up $14,951  from April’s 2014’s collections of $86,245       .  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $47,464;   +   4.4% 

 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  + 14.8% 
 

 4.  Lodging Tax Fund : Statement of Rev over Exp, April, 2015  
 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Fund report and noted the unreserved balance for Bayfront related 
purchases is $1,920,038 and recreation,- $569,939. 
 

5.  Correction/Court Fund Report, April, 2015 
 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Correction/ Court Fund Report and reported that $17,832 has been transferred to 
date from the court portion of the fund to the corrections for the purchase of inmate meals/equipment. 
Discussion continued on different types of purchases made from these funds. 
 
              6. Debt Service Fund Statement of Rev Over Exp, through March, 2015 
 
Ms. Kichler stated that revenues of $361,993 have been collected through 3/31/15 and the cash balance at 
3/31/15 is $2,143,579. 

 
              7.  Debt Service Summary Activity,  through March 2015  
Ms. Kichler noted the Debt Summary shows the debt activity through 3/31/15 but noted this does not include the 
Capital Leases approved in the FY2015 Budget because those payments were not made until May.  Ms. Kichler 
noted the report shows the original debt issued ($63,496,155), beginning of the year balance ($37,300,930), and 
balance as of 3/31/15 ($36,308,449).  Discussion continued that the Jubilee Square debt is included in this 
fund/report but not Enterprise fund debt. 
 

              8.  Capital Projects Funds Balance Sheet, through March 2015  
Ms. Kichler reviewed the Capital Projects Funds Balance Sheet and the activity for each capital fund: Capital 
Reserve,  2006 Construction, 2012 Construction, and 2014 Capital Improvements Fund.  

 
              9.   Capital Projects Funds Statement of Rev Over Exp, through March, 2015  
Ms. Kichler reviewed the Statement of Revenues over Expenditures and noted there are some grant receivables 
due.  Ms. Kichler noted there are currently some ATRIP monies pending payment.   

 
10. Enterprise Funds Statement of Net Position, March, 2015 

Ms. Kichler reviewed the Enterprise Funds report. 
 

11.  Enterprise Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position,   
       March 2015 

Ms. Kichler stated that as of March, 2015 the garbage fund was $23,556 revenues over expenditures and Civic 
Center required a transfer from the General Fund in the amount of $96,122 and BayFront transfer - $48,696.  
Discussion continued what an asset the Civic Center was to the City. 

14



Finance Minutes.doc   

 
Ms. Kichler reviewed the Enterprise Debt Summary Activity through 3/31/15. Discussion continued on the 
different financial reports on several funds that Ms. Kichler had prepared through mid-year (March, 2015.  ) Mr. 
Fry asked if March would be closed soon.  Ms. Kichler stated that once she completed reconciling all funds 
through March, 2015 the months would be closed in Munis financial software. 

 
12.  Bills Paid Reports –  May, 2015 

The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet. 
 
 

C. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 

GENERAL FUND: 
1. Lake Forest property, Lot 62 Sub Unit 25, Melanie Loop/Edgar Circle Project Drainage 

Repair - $7,500  
      

Mr. Johnson  reviewed the project and noted this property needs to be purchased due to drainage issues as a 
result of the April 29

th
 Rain Event.  Mr. Johnson stated that after the drainage repairs were made upstream 

some downstream drainage issues found.   Mr. Johnson noted that this property purchase was not eligible for 
FEMA and NRCS reimbursement and should be handled separately.   

 

Motion by Mr. Davis  to appropriate $7,500  from General Fund to purchase the Lake 
Forest Lot 62 Sub Unit 25 property.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 

 
    LODGING TAX  FUND: 

2. Recreational Facilities – Master Plan & Design Engineering Cost - $168,100   
Mr. LeJeune  reviewed the project and the need to get funding in place for the Master Plan and noted there is a 
Park’s Team meeting scheduled for June 18

th
 .  Mr. LeJeune stated that Mr. Jay Dickson, Volkert Engineering 

would give additional information on getting the project started.  Mr. Dickson reviewed Volkert’s Master Plan.  
Mr. Scott emphasized that all the engineers involved in the project need to be at the meetings and part of the 
Master plan.  Mr. Dickson said absolutely everyone would be included in the meeting.  Mr. Dickson reviewed the 
Design and Construction Phase services cost - $168,100.  Mr. Johnson stated that he believed the City may 
already have a topography map for  some these areas.  Mrs. Campbell stated that she may have some of the 
environmental permits needed also.  Mr. Dickson stated they would be reviewing which permits the City has in 
place. 

 

Motion by Mr. LeJeune  to appropriate  $168,100  from the Lodging Tax Fund for the 
Master Planning and Pre-Design for the Daphne Recreation Facilities.  Seconded by 
Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 

 
          D.    Update (2) Signatory Ordinances – Confiscated Account & ALL other City Accounts  
Mrs. Henson discussed that the Confiscated account ordinance needed to be updated and that the City’s new 
Finance Director/Treasurer, Kelli Kichler needed to be added as a signer to all accounts. 

 
          E.    Update Pay Scale for Director level positions, City Judge, City Prosecutor  
Mr. Fry noted due to time limitations the pay scale update for Director level positions, City Judge, and City 
Prosecutor would be discussed at the Council Work Session that followed the Finance Meeting.  A comparison 
of pay scales from similar surrounding municipalities was included in the packet. 

 
          F.    TV Equipment for recording Council Meetings  
Discussion was made that the Mayor had requested this item be on the agenda.  Mrs. Hayes said she did not 
receive any additional backup from the Mayor.  Mrs. Hayes said she does know the Mayor wants to upgrade the 
projectors to Televisions.  Mr. Fry stated this item could be brought up by the Mayor at the Work Session if 
needed. 

 
 
 

15



Finance Minutes.doc   

          G.   Update on 2011  U. S. Fish & Wildlife Grant:  Bay Front Park Sign  
Mrs. Campbell stated she had made a few phone calls and was waiting for a call back to confirm the status and 
deadline of the grant. 

 

         H.   Update on City Grant Consulting Services:  Adams & Reese, Mr. Britton Bonner  
Mr. Fry introduced Mr. Bonner, City’s legal counsel for Grant consulting services.  Mr. Bonner reviewed the 
available grant monies available to the City of Daphne.  Mr. Bonner stated there are currently three submittals 
for the City, the Mayor has submitted one NFWF (National Fish and Wildlife Foundation) project-$2 million for 
sewer, Ashley has submitted two environmental (watershed) projects: Yancey Branch Watershed Restoration -
$5,484,810 & D’Olive Creek Watershed property acquisition-$900,000.  Mr. Bonner stated the Daphne Utility 
Board has three projects submitted.  Mr. Bonner stated that the first round will focus on economic and 
infrastructure projects.  Discussion continued on what projects could be submitted and if they could be 
submitted for all three grant options/buckets: Alabama Gulf Coast Recovery Council (AGCRC) / Gulf Coast 
Ecosystem Restoration Council (Federal Council) / & National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF).  Mr. 
Dickson stated he would submit for all options/buckets.  Discussion continued on the grant process and what 
type projects should be presented. BP grant monies were discussed.  Mr. Bonner stated it is the Governor’s 
discretion to decide what projects to approve for BP funds.  Mr. Scott stated there is the possibility after an audit 
that funding approval could be rescinded.  

 
Mr. Bonner said he would be sending out a survey/questionnaire to Department Heads to list all grants the City 
has applied for and which have been awarded.  Mr. Bonner stated this will help Adams & Reese see where the 
successes have been and where there has not been success. 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 6:15 p.m.  

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



RESOLUTION 2015-42 
 

Confiscated Funds Signatories 
 

 
WHEREAS, a separate bank account for Confiscated Funds was heretofore 
established and authorized by Resolution 1999-60; and 
 
WHEREAS, the signatories for such Confiscated Funds were established to be the 
current Mayor or Finance Director and certain representatives from the Daphne 
Police Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, revisions to the authorized signatories as listed in Resolution 2013-37 
are needed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne 
that: 
 

1) The authorized signatories for the Confiscated Funds account are hereby 
established as the Mayor or Finance Director and Captain Judson Beedy or 
Lieutenant Brian Gulsby; and 

 
2) All other provisions of Resolutions 1999-60, 2006-19, 2007-67, and 2013-

37 remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
ADOTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ________ day of ____________, 2015. 
 
    
      
      
     ____________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

50



ORDINANCE 2015-33 
DAPHNE RECREATIONAL FACILITIES: MASTER PLANNING & PRE-

DESIGN APPRORIATION 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-48 sets forth an allocation of Lodging Tax proceeds 
that may be used for certain recreational grounds capital items; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Daphne Facilities project meets such recreational grounds capital 
criteria; and  
 
WHEREAS, Engineers have been selected by Council to provide services and 
oversee the following segments of the project: 

 Project Program Manager - Volkert & Associates 

 Grass Athletic Consultant - Lose & Associates (HMR) 

 Tennis Courts – Hatch Mott McDonald 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include 
an appropriation from the Lodging Tax Fund for the Master Planning and Pre-
Design Daphne of the Recreational Facilities in the amount of $168,100.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this ___ day of ______, 2015. 
 
 
 
             

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



 ORDINANCE NO. 2015-34 
 
An Ordinance Setting Forth the Authorization of Certain City Officials as 
Designated Signatories on Various Accounts of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  The following Officers of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be and hereby are 
officially designated as the appropriate and authorized signatories on the various City 
accounts of the City of Daphne, Alabama: 
 
    Mayor    Dane Haygood 
    Finance Director   Kelli Kichler 
    Councilmember   John L. Lake 
    Councilmember    Pat Rudicell 
     
 
SECTION 2:  All checks, drafts, and all other financial transfers shall be signed by two (2) 
of the above-designated signatories. 
 
SECTION 3:  Any ordinance or resolution previously adopted which in any way conflicts 
with this Ordinance is hereby deemed repealed in its entirety with the exclusion of 
Resolution 2013-37 which prescribes signatories for the Confiscated Funds account. 
 
SECTION 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any part of this 
Ordinance is declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
declaration shall not affect the remaining parts. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
THIS _______day of _______________, 2015. 
 
        
 
 
       ____________________ 
       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________                             
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

64



ORDINANCE 2015-35 
 

Lake Forest – Lot 62-Sub Unit 25 Property Purchase  
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, several properties have had drainage issues with the last occurrence being 
during the 16.5" rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve the health, 
safety, and convenience of the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, this purchase is NOT eligible for FEMA reimbursement; and 
  
WHEREAS, the cost to purchase the property is $7,500.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby 
amended to include an appropriation in the amount of $7,500 from the General Fund for 
purchase of the Lake Forest, Lot 62, Sub Unit 25 (PPIN:017540). 
    
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
___ day of ______, 2015. 
 
 
 
              

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

65


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Finance Minutes
	Backup 1 for Finance
	Backup 2 for Finance
	Public Safety Minutes
	BZA Minutes
	Events Permit
	2015-42 - RES - Confiscated Fund Signatories-15
	2015-33 - ORD - Lodging Tax-Daphne Recreational Facilites-Master PlanningPre-Design
	Backup to 2015-33
	2015-34 - ORD - Signature Authority-2015
	2015-35 - ORD - Lake Forest Property-Lot 62-Sub Unit 25



